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          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Welcome to today's

          3  hearing of the City Council's Committee on

          4  Transportation. My name is John Liu. I have the

          5  privilege of chairing this Committee. Today's

          6  hearing is an oversight hearing on the role of the

          7  City as it relates to the operation of interstate

          8  buses.

          9                 In the last ten years, the number of

         10  interstate buses, particularly buses that operate

         11  curbside, and not out of terminals, have increased

         12  greatly. These include buses that connect New York

         13  with other cities, such as Boston, Washington,

         14  Philadelphia, and cities as far away as Atlanta.

         15                 These also include many buses that

         16  operate throughout the City, taking people to

         17  destinations such as casinos. These are often

         18  referred to as "casino buses."

         19                 These companies initially targeted

         20  certain ethnic communities but now serve a wider

         21  range of the public at large. Many have regular

         22  schedules and some even have websites where you can

         23  purchase tickets for these bus trips on line.

         24                 The buses have been very popular with

         25  students and other people with limited incomes
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          2  because of the prices, the low prices, that they

          3  offer.

          4                 However, there has also been some

          5  criticism that these buses do not follow the rules

          6  and regulations that other companies do, and perhaps

          7  compete on an unfair basis with the larger companies

          8  that do maintain facilities and operate out of bus

          9  terminals.

         10                 Some of the buses that have been

         11  operated curbside have been involved in accidents,

         12  have been involved in incidents where the buses have

         13  caught fire, and so questions concerning the safety

         14  of these buses and their operations have been raised

         15  as well.

         16                 There have been some allegations,

         17  ties to criminal elements with employees and

         18  possibly the operators of these bus companies, and

         19  there have been frequent complaints from local

         20  residents and business owners that the bus companies

         21  sometimes unfairly and inappropriately take public

         22  space alongside the curbs on streets and on the

         23  sidewalks.

         24                 The interstate buses are generally

         25  regulated by the federal government, the United
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          2  States Department of Transportation, but, of course,

          3  because these issues have arisen in recent years, we

          4  have to look to see what we can do on the local, the

          5  municipal level, to see what we can do to ensure

          6  that these operations are as safe as possible, and

          7  that issues with regard to the use of public space

          8  are resolved clearly.

          9                 We are holding this hearing to

         10  examine what the City has done, or should be doing

         11  in order to address these very real, all be them

         12  local concerns.

         13                 I'm delighted to be joined by members

         14  of the Council, Council Member Larry Seabrook from

         15  the Bronx, Council Member Andrew Lanza from Staten

         16  Island, Council Member Joe Addabbo from Queens, and

         17  Council Member Miguel Martinez from Manhattan, and

         18  also Council Member Alan Gerson from Manhattan. As

         19  well we have members coming in and out of Committee

         20  hearings as there are multiple hearings taking place

         21  at this very same time.

         22                 We are also very happy to be joined

         23  by members of New York's finest, and I understand

         24  that Michael Lau from the 5th Precinct, Inspector

         25  Michael Law, as well as Captain Patrick Carney from
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          2  the Surface Transportation Enforcement District, and

          3  of course, they are joined by our favorite,

          4  Assistant Commissioner Susan Petito.

          5                 I would like to invite my colleagues

          6  to make opening statements if they would like to,

          7  beginning with Council Member Alan Gerson, whose

          8  district is severely impacted by these curbside bus

          9  operations.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you very

         11  much, Mr. Chair. Thank you for organizing and

         12  conducting this very, very important hearing, and

         13  thank you and the Committee for your indulgence of

         14  me, by allowing me to make this statement. I will

         15  then have to depart to go to another Committee

         16  hearing. But I needed to be here to just briefly

         17  address the community impact and perspective on this

         18  very, very, very issue (sic). Then I'm sure, Mr.

         19  Chair, with your ongoing brilliant leadership, you

         20  will continue to lead us to better solutions and

         21  resolutions.

         22                 I also want to acknowledge the

         23  presence and thank for his ongoing hard work, our

         24  Lower Manhattan's own Inspector Lau. You do a great

         25  job, and we thank you for that.
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          2                 Mr. Chair, just very briefly.

          3  Chinatown in the Lower East Side, as you mentioned,

          4  are considerably impacted. Chinatown and the Lower

          5  East Side, by all accounts, have more pick-up and

          6  drop-off traffic from these buses then the Port

          7  Authority in its entirety.

          8                 These are oversized buses, rumbling

          9  often down and through narrow congested streets,

         10  taking up parking spaces, when we have a parking

         11  crunch in the community. These are diesel-emitting

         12  buses, adding, excuse me, adding to the air

         13  pollution and the health hazards which already exist

         14  in Lower Manhattan.

         15                 This is unacceptable. Let me repeat,

         16  this is unacceptable.

         17                 The Lower Manhattan Development

         18  Corporation recognized this problem over three years

         19  ago in response to community input, what it

         20  recommended, the creation of a specific location for

         21  dropping off and picking up.

         22                 While I three years later am not sure

         23  if their specific site recommendation remains the

         24  best resolution, the problem clearly remains

         25  unresolved.
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          2                 I just want to appeal to all

          3  authorities that we work together with this

          4  Committee, with the community, with all involved in

          5  dealing with this issue, to come up with a solution

          6  which must significantly reduce the amount of long

          7  distance bus traffic into and out of Chinatown and

          8  the Lower East Side. The current levels are not

          9  acceptable under any circumstances. And those that

         10  remain at a manageable level be centralized at a

         11  terminal point in proximity to major arteries and

         12  specifically major bridges and our highways,

         13  specifically the FDR Drive.

         14                 We cannot continue to allow these

         15  buses to have the way of the community in what

         16  really amounts to bus anarchy and the imposition and

         17  the hazards it imposes on the community.

         18                 So, I appeal to all of us to work

         19  together, and I thank you, again, Mr. Chair, for

         20  pursuing this issue critical to our community and

         21  the entire City.

         22                 Thank you very much.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council

         24  Member Gerson.

         25                 We have some comments from Council
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          2  Member Miguel Martinez.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Thank you,

          4  Mr. Chair.

          5                 This is an extremely important issue,

          6  and I'm glad that Council Member Gerson is

          7  presenting his perspective.

          8                 You have two Council Members from the

          9  Borough of Manhattan, one from the extreme northern

         10  end, and one from the extreme end southern Lower

         11  Manhattan. And I, too, have the problem of these

         12  large buses, large vans and so forth, that commute

         13  via the George Washington Bridge and Port Authority

         14  Station that we have on 179th and Broadway, and I

         15  would tell you that looking at communities where

         16  I've spoken to other colleagues, either State

         17  representative or local representative, you will

         18  find that in many communities where we have large

         19  immigrant communities, this is an alternate

         20  transportation means for individuals to get from

         21  state to state.

         22                 However, it is clearly not just an

         23  issue of parking availability, but an issue of

         24  safety with these buses and the passengers that they

         25  commute.
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          2                 You will find that it will be

          3  interesting to me to find out, is there any way for

          4  us to measure or examine if these individuals are

          5  overloading these vans, not only with passengers,

          6  but also with the luggages and boxes and packages

          7  that I see that they load onto these buses, and the

          8  issue of speed through our streets with no regards

          9  to the speed limits in some of our streets, the

         10  buses are just speeding up and down and they have

         11  various pick-up sites, and I would say that

         12  listening from the testimony of the statement from

         13  our Chairman, yes, these are regulated mainly

         14  through interstate and federal and government

         15  highways, I think that this offers an opportunity

         16  for us to have a dialogue with the NYPD and the

         17  Department of Traffic Enforcement to see how we

         18  could set up some sort of operation while there are

         19  in our jurisdiction, so that we could monitor these

         20  buses.

         21                 Mr. Chairman, I want to thank you for

         22  this hearing, and again, you're getting too clear

         23  perspective from two ends of the Borough of

         24  Manhattan where we have this huge problem, not only

         25  a problem of parking but a problem of safety concern
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          2  for these passengers, and I will share with you

          3  later on some of the testimony I've gotten from some

          4  of my constituents that have used this

          5  transportation and told of the disregard for safety

          6  with many of these companies.

          7                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council

          9  Member Martinez.

         10                 And, yes, I mean that is exactly why

         11  we're holding this hearing. It is certainly true

         12  that the numbers of these bus operations have

         13  increased in recent years, and we certainly

         14  recognize the value that they provide to many

         15  communities, particularly to communities where there

         16  are large numbers of immigrants.

         17                 At the same time, we do have a

         18  responsibility to make sure that these bus

         19  operations are safe, and I would certainly argue

         20  that we have that responsibility at the municipal

         21  level, as well.

         22                 We also have the responsibility to

         23  strike a balance between the need for these buses to

         24  use public space on streets and sidewalks, and the

         25  needs for residents and businesses alike to have
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          2  access to the same streets and sidewalks.

          3                 And, so, that is why we're holding

          4  this oversight hearing, in order to determine what,

          5  if anything, the City can do and should be doing.

          6                 And, so, at this point it is my

          7  delight and pleasure to introduce our first speaker,

          8  the Commanding Officer of the 5th Precinct, Deputy

          9  Inspector Michael Lau.

         10                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR LAU: Thank you,

         11  Councilman.

         12                 Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman, and

         13  members of the Council. I am Deputy Inspector

         14  Michael Lau, the Commanding Officer of NYPD's 5th

         15  Precinct.

         16                 I am joined today by Captain Patrick

         17  Carney, Commanding Officer of the Surface

         18  Transportation Enforcement District.

         19                 On behalf of Police Commissioner

         20  Raymond Kelly, we are pleased to be here today to

         21  discuss New York City's oversight role in the

         22  operation of interstate buses.

         23                 Over the past few years we have

         24  witnessed a growing phenomena which has changed the

         25  nature of interstate bus routes affecting New York
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          2  City.

          3                 A new set of shuttle buses, bus

          4  companies has emerged, offering extremely low fares

          5  to destinations such as Philadelphia, Boston,

          6  Washington, D.C., Baltimore, Richmond, and as you

          7  mentioned, even as far as Atlanta.

          8                 Our informal estimate is that there

          9  are 31 such companies with no reliable estimate of

         10  the actual number of buses they use.

         11                 In New York City the trips almost

         12  invariably begin and end in Chinatown, where

         13  passengers purchase tickets on the street, or at

         14  storefront locations maintained by the bus

         15  companies. Some companies also provide for on-line

         16  e-ticketing. Passengers are routinely picked up or

         17  dropped off at several stops in densely populated

         18  areas, such as Bowery and Canal Street. Canal Street

         19  and Forsyth Street, Chrystie Street and Hester

         20  Street. Forsyth Street between East Broadway and

         21  Division Street, we have a staging area on Forsyth

         22  Street between Canal and Division Street.

         23                 For this purpose, the bus companies

         24  use curbside space, which was meant to accommodate

         25  tall buses, bringing visitors to Chinatown to spend
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          2  a few hours, enjoying Chinatown itself.

          3                 Instead, the area is now used as an

          4  ad hoc terminal by the shuttle bus companies

          5  resulting in dangerous congestion, and the

          6  possibility of accidents and violence as bus drivers

          7  jockey for both passengers and parking in a very

          8  limited space.

          9                 This year alone we have seen

         10  instances of assault, criminal mischief and even a

         11  shooting associated with the conflicts among these

         12  companies.

         13                 Interstate bus companies are

         14  regulated by the federal and state laws and rules.

         15  These standards are primarily administered and

         16  enforced by the US Department of Transportation's

         17  Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration of

         18  FMCSA, and the New York State Department of

         19  Transportation, DOT.

         20                 The bus companies and drivers are

         21  generally licensed by the home state of the company,

         22  and must fulfill the State's minimum requirements in

         23  areas such as equipment, insurance, safety

         24  inspections and driver qualifications.

         25                 However, the FMCSA has pursuant to
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          2  its federal authority established minimum standards

          3  which companies and drivers must adhere to above and

          4  beyond any individual stat's requirements, in order

          5  to enhance motor carrier safety.

          6                 The FMCSA also maintains on its

          7  website www.fmcsa.gov a comprehensive database which

          8  allows the general public to obtain, not only the

          9  federal rules applicable to large trucks and buses,

         10  but also an individual company safety record.

         11                 New York State's vehicle and traffic

         12  law of ATL also governs the operation of interstate

         13  buses on New York's roads and bus companies and

         14  drivers must comply with all the applicable state

         15  laws.

         16                 For example, buses operated in New

         17  York State must have certain items of equipment,

         18  notwithstanding where the bus is registered, such as

         19  fire extinguisher, safety glass and flares or other

         20  emergency lighting.

         21                 Interstate bus drivers must also

         22  observe the applicable local laws and rules

         23  regarding operation of these buses on the roads,

         24  primarily due to traffic rules established by the

         25  New York City DOT, and enforced by the NYPD.
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          2                 Because the interstate shuttle buses

          3  present a special problem in the 5th Precinct, we

          4  have devoted significant patrol resources to it and

          5  have targeted our enforcement to the locations where

          6  buses park illegally. We have also enlisted the help

          7  of Captain Carney and the Surface Transportation

          8  Enforcement Unit, which has Citywide jurisdiction.

          9                 We had met with these companies to

         10  reinforce the need to comply with the law, and to

         11  warn them of the consequences of irresponsible or

         12  violent behavior by the drivers.

         13                 We have also conducted joint

         14  operations with the US DOT and the New York State

         15  DOT in order to aggressively enforce the federal and

         16  State requirements which fall primarily within their

         17  respective jurisdictions.

         18                 Going forward we will continue to

         19  focus on enforcement as a way to prevent the

         20  conflict, violence and congestion, which has

         21  unfortunately become part of this business.

         22                 Additionally, New York City DOT has

         23  advised us that they are working with the Economic

         24  Development Corporation to address the needs of the

         25  community in Lower Manhattan, and are conducting a
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          2  bus parking management study to look at bus supply

          3  and demand issues in all Lower Manhattan, south of

          4  Canal Street.

          5                 The study, which is being funded by

          6  the Lower Manhattan Development Corporation, began

          7  in September and is expected to be completed in the

          8  early spring when recommendations will be made.

          9                 We appreciate your concern in holding

         10  this hearing, and we'll be pleased to answer any

         11  questions you may have.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Inspector

         14  Lau.

         15                 And Captain Carney, you are here for

         16  questions only? Or do you have up front testimony?

         17                 CAPTAIN CARNEY: Just questions only.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Great.

         19                 Basically it sounds like the City's

         20  responsibilities with regard to the City's

         21  Department of Transportation is that the DOT

         22  promulgates rules, these rules are applicable to all

         23  motorists, whether they be individual passenger car

         24  drivers or bus operators. There are no special

         25  regulations that are directed towards the operators
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          2  of these bus companies?

          3                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR LAU: There are

          4  certain regulations. For example, DOT staged, put a

          5  staging area in the command on Forsyth Street

          6  between Division and Canal which allows for buses to

          7  lay over, I should say, on that particular block.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So, that means that

          9  DOT is able to designate these loading, the

         10  passenger loading and layover zones?

         11                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR LAU: Yes. In

         12  addition, they have actually a bus stop on Forsyth

         13  between East Broadway and Division.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So, to what extent

         15  do operators of interstate buses, since they are

         16  generally governed by federal regulations, to what

         17  extent are they able to stop along curbside even

         18  without the designation of a loading or layover

         19  zone?

         20                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR LAU: Well, I believe

         21  if they are chartered, they are allowed to stop with

         22  safety permitting to load and discharge passengers

         23  at any location.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Along the curbside.

         25                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR LAU: Yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay. So, then these

          3  special designated areas, it doesn't seem like

          4  they're required by law. They're simply a means to

          5  facilitate the operations of these buses.

          6                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR LAU: Right. But if

          7  you didn't have these areas, then it would be pretty

          8  hard to have, for example, in our community 31 some

          9  odd companies to be able to find these spots on a

         10  regular basis on their own.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Right. So, it's

         12  almost as if it's a voluntary compliance on the part

         13  of the bus companies.

         14                 I mean, the problem is, it's

         15  unfortunate that the Department of Transportation is

         16  not here fulfilling their responsibility. My

         17  understanding from the Department of Transportation

         18  is that the City cannot actually dictate where these

         19  interstate buses stop and load or unload passengers.

         20  And that through the arrangement with the 5th

         21  Precinct, which I think your precinct has done very

         22  admirably in trying to get out on top of the issue,

         23  in the absence of Citywide regulations, that you've

         24  been able to work out an arrangement where the

         25  various companies cooperate and adhere to these
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          2  specially designated areas. But is it a matter of

          3  law that they don't actually have to adhere to these

          4  designated zones, that they can in fact stop

          5  anywhere because they are interstate?

          6                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR LAU: Well, I

          7  wouldn't say that they could stop anywhere. You

          8  still have to find a spot along the curbside where

          9  it doesn't interfere with -- for example, in

         10  Chinatown it's hard to find any such spot.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I see. So, that it

         12  is to their advantage that these zones, generally

         13  they're no standing zones are set up so that they

         14  can, in fact, pull up alongside the curb to

         15  discharge and pick up passengers.

         16                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR LAU: Right.

         17                 As I testified, these spots were

         18  initially designated for these tourist buses to come

         19  down, discharge the passengers and leave, but I

         20  guess because of the amount of companies that we

         21  have, you know, certain companies have used these

         22  stops as their own staging areas.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Staging areas,

         24  meaning just to park between dropping off passengers

         25  and then filling up the bus again with passengers,
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          2  okay.

          3                 And, Captain Carney, your division

          4  simply enforces what is currently the law, and it

          5  sounds like it's basically -- I mean, is there any

          6  special enforcement that you conduct against these

          7  bus operations that's different from any other

          8  traffic violations?

          9                 CAPTAIN CARNEY: Well, of course we're

         10  concerned with traffic violations, but DOT maintains

         11  a list of designated layover sites throughout the

         12  City.

         13                 Buses are only authorizing the bus

         14  stop to discharge, and we have problems Citywide

         15  with buses idling and laying over, and that's the

         16  type of enforcement we do in conjunction with

         17  precinct commanders.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I see.

         19                 Okay. So, in other words, are you

         20  suggesting that these interstate buses, they can

         21  pick up and drop passengers anywhere, so long as

         22  they can find curb space?

         23                 CAPTAIN CARNEY: Yes, temporarily.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Temporarily, just

         25  for the purpose, just as of anybody driving a car
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          2  could stop and let off a passenger or pick up their

          3  family member who they're driving, a large bus

          4  carrying up to 60 people could do the same thing

          5  along the curbside?

          6                 CAPTAIN CARNEY: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And obviously, the

          8  only exception would be the curbside areas

          9  designated as no stopping.

         10                 CAPTAIN CARNEY: Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Because even a

         12  passenger car cannot stop alongside --

         13                 CAPTAIN CARNEY: No standing any time.

         14                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR LAU: The regular

         15  traffic regulations that apply to all other vehicles

         16  would apply to the buses.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Right. Well, if

         18  they're dropping off passengers or picking up

         19  passengers, even if it could be 60 passengers,

         20  that's still, would they still be able to stand or

         21  park alongside a no standing zone? Because

         22  technically they're not standing, right? Like they

         23  wouldn't be able to stop alongside a no stopping

         24  zone.

         25                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR LAU: Yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: But a no standing

          3  zone, they're not allowed to stop there either?

          4                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR LAU: Well, some of

          5  these no standing zones, there's a reason for it

          6  because of the location. It builds up traffic. It

          7  may be a dangerous condition. It may not be enough

          8  room for anybody to stop. Except on Worth Street, on

          9  Chambers Street, there are certain areas where if a

         10  bus stopped it would impede the flow of traffic, you

         11  know, any other traffic from going through.

         12                 I mean, there are permitted areas

         13  throughout the City that DOT maintains a list of

         14  that absolutely no standing is allowed, or

         15  drop-offs.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Yes. I mean, those

         17  are -- you know, there's three kinds of parking

         18  regulations. There's no parking, no standing and no

         19  stopping. No stopping is generally where no one can

         20  even stop to let someone off or pick someone up.

         21  Okay.

         22                 But what you're suggesting is that,

         23  really the biggest enforcement we have is, even if a

         24  bus is an interstate operation, they may have a

         25  right to pick up and drop off passengers, but they
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          2  don't have a right to just park anywhere on a City

          3  street.

          4                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR LAU: Right. Or

          5  double park or block hydrants or any of these other

          6  safety hazards.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So, the layover

          8  zones that have been created in Lower Manhattan,

          9  what is the general -- I mean, is that something

         10  that the City provides the companies to the

         11  companies? What is the incentive for the City to

         12  provide that space, and what are some of the

         13  elements of these stops that make it difficult for

         14  the companies to adhere to?

         15                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR LAU: Well, for

         16  example, the layover zones, if a company is dropping

         17  off tourists in Chinatown, the City understands that

         18  these tourists simply go for three, four hours, and

         19  it would make sense to have a location for these

         20  buses to stage while they're waiting, as opposed to

         21  driving back to a garage and then coming back.

         22                 So, normally these layover zones are

         23  pretty close to these major destinations.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.

         25                 And, when the City helps these
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          2  companies designate these zones, what's the main

          3  purpose behind it? Is it to promote safety for the

          4  passengers? Is it to ease up on the -- is it to

          5  address the residential and business, local business

          6  complaints? What is the reason that the City sets up

          7  these layover zones?

          8                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR LAU: I would believe

          9  that it's a combination of all of those things, to

         10  facilitate the safety, to allow buses to safely

         11  discharge the passengers, and allow the bus drivers

         12  to wait a couple of hours before they have to come

         13  back. And these locations are usually again along

         14  the main arteries so that it doesn't impede on other

         15  traffic.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And what if there

         17  are places in the City where the similar kinds of

         18  problems occur, perhaps not as, not on the same

         19  scale as what happens in the 5th Precinct, but what

         20  if the same problems exist in other parts of the

         21  City? What does the -- does the NYPD have a policy,

         22  or is it left up to the Department of

         23  Transportation?

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Susan

         25  Petito. We work with the DOT. The DOT will consult
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          2  with us on the use of the curb space. It is

          3  generally within the DOT's purview to designate

          4  these areas, but they'll, of course, consult with

          5  us.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: But as far as I

          7  understand it, DOT has taken a very hands-off

          8  approach to this, that they've simply deferred it to

          9  the United States Department of Transportation, and

         10  that the City doesn't have a whole lot to do with

         11  this. So, who initiates these kinds of discussions

         12  when there are parts of the City where these layover

         13  zones may be necessary?

         14                 I get the feeling that it's the NYPD

         15  being proactive and the DOT is just kind of coming

         16  along for the ride because they have no choice.

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Well,

         18  on occasion we would certainly make the suggestion.

         19  I think it also comes from community concerns. But

         20  part of this is also the overall economic picture of

         21  the City because these layover places are designated

         22  to be near major tourist attractions where the tour

         23  buses do come.

         24                 So, I think that it's a combination

         25  of factors. Certainly DOT would be responsive to
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          2  community complaints.

          3                 As we mentioned in the testimony, DOT

          4  is studying the entire area of Lower Manhattan for

          5  all of the parking issues, but this is definitely

          6  part of that study.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

          8                 We have some questions from Council

          9  Member Martinez.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Thank you,

         11  Mr. Chair.

         12                 So, I want to be practical in my

         13  questioning.

         14                 There is usually a problem when we

         15  have multiple agencies, especially when we talk

         16  about a different layer of government. It makes it

         17  more complicated in terms of who is responsible for

         18  what.

         19                 What I do understand is that the NYPD

         20  is responsible for traffic enforcement; am I right?

         21                 CAPTAIN CARNEY: Yes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Am I right?

         23                 CAPTAIN CARNEY: Right. Yes.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: So, if I

         25  have these vans in my community that are
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          2  double-parked and are loading and unloading

          3  passengers and packages, not only do they load up

          4  passengers, people, they also do deliveries, boxes.

          5  So, what I want to know is, and my particular

          6  community is very different than Chinatown, for

          7  various reasons, it's more of a tourist attraction

          8  and so forth, but the role of the NYPD and the role

          9  of the traffic enforcement officers, is there any

         10  special training for, or does the NYPD and the -- I

         11  know it's the same Department, but do the traffic

         12  enforcement officers and the NYPD police officers,

         13  do they work in collaboration in establishing

         14  checkpoints for these vehicles?

         15                 CAPTAIN CARNEY: Yes, we have worked

         16  with DOT, and the 5th Precinct has worked with DOT.

         17  In terms of commuter van enforcement, we do a number

         18  of operations Citywide. The Police Department has

         19  dedicated resources to commuter van --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: But not

         21  commuter van. We're talking about the interstate

         22  ones. Because commuter van and interstate are two

         23  different issues. You know, these are the ones that

         24  are coming from state-to-state and not the ones that

         25  we have in our local localities here in the City.
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          2                 Because we have vans, and we have the

          3  big vans, and we have the bigger buses that are

          4  doing interstate commute. My concern is, with the

          5  vans that are doing the interstate commute, that

          6  some of them, just by looking at them, not being,

          7  and not having the training of a police officer, if

          8  I do an inspection of those vehicles, I will find,

          9  obviously I will find a couple of issues that were

         10  wrong in terms of the safety of the vans.

         11                 You know, some of them, from hearing

         12  from my constituents, don't even have seatbelt

         13  available for each passenger, the number of

         14  passengers that they commute.

         15                 So, my question is, how often do you

         16  stop these vans to check for seatbelts, the amount

         17  of individuals in the vans, and does that happen at

         18  all?

         19                 CAPTAIN CARNEY: It's on a daily

         20  basis.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: I'm not --

         22  Inspector, with all your respect, you're a special

         23  case because you actually stepped up with your

         24  precinct and you have a whole operation. I'm trying

         25  to figure out if Citywide, Captain, is there an
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          2  initiative from the NYPD to address this issue?

          3                 Or to be more direct, have you mapped

          4  out already which communities we have this -- not

          5  every community has this problem, and as I

          6  mentioned, when we look at communities who have high

          7  number of immigrant individuals, communities of

          8  immigrant population, you will find more often this

          9  operation taking place, whether it is, you know, the

         10  Chinese communities, whether there is the land

         11  community, whether it is the Russian community and

         12  so forth, you will find that in these communities is

         13  where we see more of these vans, interstate vans

         14  coming to our communities, picking up and dropping

         15  off in various points, because it's become an

         16  ultimate way of transportation.

         17                 But what my concern more is the

         18  safety aspect of these vans and how are we

         19  monitoring and regulating them.

         20                 Because some of them may have a

         21  license plate from Massachusetts. In my community,

         22  particularly, you see more plates from

         23  Massachusetts, but when we look at these vans, I'm

         24  sure there are issues having to do with safety

         25  there.
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          2                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR LAU: Well, the

          3  primary responsibility for safety is charged with

          4  the DOT to inspect these vehicles, but we have

          5  worked in conjunction with DOT.

          6                 They'll conduct the inspection on

          7  site, assisted by NYPD officers.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: You're talking about

          9  the United States DOT?

         10                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR LAU: Yes. In terms

         11  of the Charter buses and interstate-type things, but

         12  we have resources that have been dedicated to doing

         13  that type of enforcement.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: So, when

         15  these vehicles have their inspection done, the

         16  vehicle inspection that they check for the safety

         17  aspect and motor issue, does the NYPD, just like

         18  they do with trucks, that, you know, commute

         19  interstate, are you guys stopping these guys to

         20  check for safety issues and their regular

         21  paperworks?

         22                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR LAU: In conjunction

         23  with the State DOT, if they do a joint operation,

         24  they'll do a safety inspection of the vehicle.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Do you think
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          2  that this is becoming more of a Citywide problem,

          3  not just a particularly Chinatown problem?

          4                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR LAU: We have a

          5  number of issues with tour buses. It's a midtown

          6  congestion-type issue, charter buses down in

          7  Chinatown. We have van issues Citywide, commuter

          8  van, normal type commuter van issues. In addition to

          9  bus lane enforcement, just clearing bus lanes.

         10                 So, it's one of a number of issues.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: You know, I

         12  would, Captain, suggest, because you're with the

         13  unit that does the surface transportation, but

         14  enforcement district, but obviously there is no one

         15  here from the highway patrol, am I right?

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: That's

         17  right.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: You know,

         19  from the highway patrol unit, I've seen how they

         20  sometimes set up, because even though you guys are

         21  interstate, they come into our highways also. And

         22  particularly, I'm looking at coming out of the

         23  George Washington Bridge where we get off in the

         24  179th exit, that there should be some sort of

         25  strategic planning in the NYPD. One, to look at and
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          2  map out throughout the City where we have this

          3  problem of the interstate buses, commuter buses, not

          4  the commuter buses that we have locally but the

          5  interstate ones that obviously are licensed and

          6  inspected in other states other than New York. But

          7  they're coming into our City, and they're commuting

          8  in our streets, so I think once they're in our

          9  street, we have the jurisdiction to inspect these

         10  vehicles, one, to make sure how many passengers are

         11  in the van, if it's the appropriate amount of

         12  individuals, because they're going beyond the amount

         13  of individuals, because I've seen this, and the same

         14  is true in terms of the load that these vans. I

         15  mean, it could be very dangerous for one of these

         16  vans to be overloaded and grab a curb. We've heard

         17  the story what's happened before. And for us to

         18  strategically map out these communities and start

         19  doing some strategic enforcement when these vans

         20  come into our community, and I understand, Deputy

         21  Inspector, in terms of your particular issue, which

         22  is so many, because it's more of a tourist

         23  attraction and now it's become one of the main means

         24  of alternate transportation to get out of the City

         25  in Chinatown, but we really need to start looking at

                                                            34

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  these areas and the safety issues that these are --

          3  the danger they possess with passengers, not only

          4  the ones that are in the van, but also, you know,

          5  pedestrians, because these guys are flying, and

          6  they're flying because they're on a time line. In

          7  other words, they need to depart from X point B and

          8  from point C at another time and then hit the road

          9  at another time to meet their deadline when they get

         10  to the other state, and I think that there needs to

         11  be that collaboration also with other states when

         12  these guys are hitting the pedal. And I would have

         13  liked to have known, looking at the overall problem

         14  Citywide, or starting to identify Citywide where we

         15  have these vans in our communities. And, again, I

         16  know this is a federal issue, I know when there are

         17  multiple agencies involved, it is usually difficult,

         18  because we don't know whether it's this agency or

         19  that agency, or the collaboration is not always

         20  there, but once they're in our streets, they're in

         21  our jurisdiction, and I think we should start doing

         22  some inspections, some stopping you guys. You know,

         23  we need to make sure they are held accountable and

         24  held responsible for being in our street. Just like

         25  a regular New Yorker that's inspected and licensed
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          2  in New York City, in New York State, those guys that

          3  are coming into the City to pick up passengers need

          4  to be held to the same level of accountability.

          5                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: And thank

          8  you, Captain, and Deputy Inspector, and the Deputy

          9  Commissioner, also. Obviously.

         10                 I'll say that loud. Thank you, Deputy

         11  Commissioner.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council

         13  Member Martinez. We have also been joined by Council

         14  Member Darlene Mealy from Brooklyn.

         15                 So, and I think if it's not clear,

         16  Council Member Martinez refers to what you may

         17  consider commuter vans but they're not, they're

         18  certainly not licensed by the Taxi and Limousine

         19  Commission because they operate interstate, they

         20  often transport people, most of whom are workers,

         21  between New York City and other states, including

         22  New Jersey, Connecticut and Massachusetts.

         23                 And, so, this is why, you know, it

         24  does not seem like the City pays a whole lot of

         25  attention to the issue of proliferating buses, buses
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          2  including the large interstate buses that travel

          3  great distances and equipped with their own

          4  restrooms and TVs. As well as what the average

          5  person on the street considers a bus, although they

          6  may not be as large. They may carry 20 to 30

          7  passengers, but we call them oversized vans, some

          8  people just call them buses. So, there does need to

          9  be more attention put on where exactly these bus

         10  companies operate. I think in Lower Manhattan, they

         11  have managed to get some control over this, but

         12  there are lots of parts of the City where there

         13  doesn't seem to be any kind of comprehension that

         14  there is even a problem. And sometimes the

         15  Administration, the Bloomberg Administration simply

         16  relegates these issues to issues affecting immigrant

         17  communities. Why not let them have their buses? But

         18  it is also the immigrants who will suffer from the

         19  insufficient inspections for safety reasons of these

         20  vehicles, and not paying -- and a lack of attention

         21  on the part of the Administration paid to the issue

         22  of competing competition for street and sidewalk

         23  space. Residents and local businesses have a very

         24  legitimate concern when it comes to these buses

         25  taking up space that normally would be available for
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          2  residents and for local businesses. And, so, it's

          3  not enough to simply say that, well, there's lots

          4  of, a lot of immigrants using these buses, and

          5  they're in immigrant communities, and, therefore,

          6  you know, why not? It's a good thing. It generally

          7  is a good thing because they provide a service that

          8  is important to the immigrants. But on the other

          9  hand, as a municipal government, we do have a

         10  responsibility to ensure the safety of the

         11  passengers, especially when they have arrangements

         12  made with government agencies, with municipal

         13  agencies, such as the NYPD.

         14                 Now, with regard to the vehicle

         15  inspections, does the City have any jurisdiction

         16  with regard to vehicle inspections, or is that

         17  purely within the jurisdiction within the federal

         18  government and the Police Department cooperates with

         19  the federal agents?

         20                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR LAU: We have

         21  jurisdiction over certain safety issues, and we do

         22  our own enforcement, and also we have join

         23  operations.

         24                 For example, so far this year we had

         25  four in the 5th Precinct where we utilized officers
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          2  from US DOT and also State DOT.

          3                 Also, I want to stress that the STED

          4  Unit that Captain Carney is in charge of, was

          5  established as a Citywide unit and is aware and is

          6  monitoring these locations Citywide. And when we

          7  learn of any problem, whether it's in 5th Precinct,

          8  the 34 Precinct, we address it in conjunction with

          9  other City agencies.

         10                 The bus layover and the bus stop that

         11  was established in the 5th Precinct was established

         12  by City DOT. So, we work together with City, State

         13  and the US.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay. So, the City,

         15  in particular, the NYPD does have the power to

         16  inspect the physical features of a bus?

         17                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR LAU: I mean, there

         18  are certain things that DOT would be more expert in,

         19  State and federal, but there is, for example, we're

         20  aware that these buses are required to have fire

         21  extinguishers, that they're required to have travel

         22  logs. So, we don't see those type of equipment in

         23  the buses. We also write those violations.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And what about the

         25  licensing and the training of the drivers who drive
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          2  these large vehicles? Is that something that the

          3  City has any jurisdiction over? Or is that purely a

          4  State Department of Motor Vehicles' jurisdiction?

          5                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR LAU: Well, again, I

          6  mean the drivers are licensed by the State where

          7  these buses are registered in. So, certain buses are

          8  registered for New York and certain buses are

          9  different states, and these drivers would have

         10  licenses based on the requirements from those

         11  states, in addition to federal requirements they

         12  have to fill.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay. So,

         14  effectively the NYPD can check to make sure that

         15  they have the right licenses?

         16                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR LAU: That they have

         17  a license, yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And Captain Carney,

         19  I presume that everybody in your unit would know the

         20  various kinds of licenses issued by various states

         21  from which these drivers come from and are licensed?

         22                 CAPTAIN CARNEY: We've had the State

         23  DOT come in and give training. All of our officers

         24  have been specially trained in bus-type enforcement.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So they do know of
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          2  all these different kinds of licenses that exist?

          3                 CAPTAIN CARNEY: Well, they've had

          4  training sessions with DOT, in terms of inspections,

          5  and, yes, they're aware of the different licenses.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.

          7                 And finally, the insurance

          8  requirements on these buses, whether they be the

          9  large 60-passenger buses or the smaller 20-passenger

         10  buses that operate interstate, is that something

         11  that we at the City level can monitor and regulate

         12  as well?

         13                 CAPTAIN CARNEY: Yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And when there is an

         15  inspection of a vehicle, is it in addition to fire

         16  extinguishers and making sure all the signal lights

         17  are working? Is there any check of the drivers

         18  licensing, as well as the insurance, the maintenance

         19  of insurance of the vehicles?

         20                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR LAU: I'm sorry,

         21  Chairman. I missed the question.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: The question is when

         23  the City conducts an inspection of a bus, interstate

         24  bus, do we check for not only making sure the

         25  equipment is there, the signal lights, the fire
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          2  extinguisher, et cetera, but also the proper

          3  license, to make sure that the driver is carrying

          4  the proper license, and that the vehicle is carrying

          5  the proper amount of insurance?

          6                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR LAU: When you say

          7  the amount of insurance, that's something, they're

          8  required to carry insurance, just like any other

          9  motor vehicle that operates through New York City,

         10  they are required to carry the necessary papers.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay. But at least

         12  the minimum level of insurance required is checked,

         13  whenever there is an inspection conducted on these

         14  buses?

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: The

         16  insurance requirements would be set by the

         17  jurisdiction where -- as they're saying, we don't

         18  know necessarily what that amount of insurance is,

         19  as required by that other state, but the proof of

         20  insurance is something that we check and we need to

         21  have.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay. So, the City

         23  basically checks to make sure that the vehicles are

         24  insured, but we don't really have any idea whether

         25  the insurance is adequate? You're saying there is no
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          2  way of knowing?

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Well,

          4  we don't second guess the level of insurance

          5  required by other states.

          6                 In other words, they need to show

          7  proof that they are insured according to the laws of

          8  the other state where their bus is registered. So,

          9  we don't know what the other state's minimums are

         10  necessarily.

         11                 I mean, some of our personnel may, in

         12  fact, know that for the neighboring states, but as

         13  long as they show proof of insurance as issued by

         14  that other jurisdiction, then they're not committing

         15  a violation.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.

         17                 And then, finally, what about the

         18  streets that the interstate buses are permitted to

         19  use?

         20                 Are they permitted to use any City

         21  street that they can actually drive the bus down

         22  through?

         23                 CAPTAIN CARNEY: No, DOT maintains a

         24  list of prohibited areas in the City. There's a

         25  number of streets that they're not allowed to
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          2  discharge.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And I assume that's

          4  part of your enforcement responsibility, to make

          5  sure that they're not on a --

          6                 CAPTAIN CARNEY: Yes, all of the

          7  officers instead in the bus unit are equipped with

          8  these bus regulations. They're experts. They know

          9  where these buses belong throughout the City and

         10  where they don't belong.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Who are the experts?

         12  The bus drivers you said?

         13                 CAPTAIN CARNEY: No, no. The officers

         14  assigned to the STED Unit. They've been provided of

         15  lists throughout the City of where the buses are

         16  authorized to be.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And are the buses

         18  generally authorized to be on most City streets? Or

         19  is it a very limited set of streets that these

         20  interstate buses actually can traverse?

         21                 CAPTAIN CARNEY: Well, there's a

         22  limited set of prohibitions, streets that they're

         23  prohibited from.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So, that means for

         25  the most part they are permitted to drive down any
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          2  City street?

          3                 CAPTAIN CARNEY: Yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.

          5                 We have questions from Council Member

          6  Mealy.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: Good afternoon.

          8  I just want to know, what are the procedures, if

          9  you're doing a sweep on these buses? Could you tell

         10  me, do you do procedures like police checkpoints in

         11  regards to the interstate buses?

         12                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR LAU: We would find a

         13  location where we could have the buses safely

         14  inspected.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: Do you do that?

         16                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR LAU: Yes, we do.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: You do. How

         18  often?

         19                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR LAU: We've done it

         20  four times this year. Joint operations. But we do

         21  our own on a regular basis.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: Okay.

         23                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR LAU: When we've done

         24  the large ones, we've done four.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: Okay.
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          2                 Okay, could you tell me the procedure

          3  in which you stop -- just like if the truck is over

          4  a load?

          5                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR LAU: Well, we would

          6  escort the buses to its designated inspection

          7  station and USDOT or State DOT would inspect the

          8  buses.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: Okay. So that's

         10  a collaboration?

         11                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR LAU: Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: Okay, NYPD and

         13  --

         14                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR LAU: Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: Okay. And could

         16  you give me at least a little statistic of how many

         17  buses do you ticket for idling? That's the air

         18  pollution, that's against the law, and I know in the

         19  5th district, Precinct district, it has to have a

         20  lot of buses just sitting around and idling and

         21  that's against the law. Could you tell me how many

         22  you have of that?

         23                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR LAU: Well, I don't

         24  have the exact number based on idling, but that's

         25  something that we target, that we don't approve. So,
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          2  when we see these buses, I have a breakdown of

          3  summonses, but not specifically into idling.

          4                 For example, hazardous violations,

          5  61.; moving violations, 168; and parking violations,

          6  249, year to date.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: Two-hundred

          8  forty-nine parking violations. Have you'all

          9  confiscated any of the buses, regarding the tickets

         10  that had --

         11                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR LAU: For example, on

         12  our last operation that we did with DOT, they

         13  inspected 12 buses and three were put out of service

         14  by DOT because they're serious hazards, serious

         15  safety violations.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: Okay. I just

         17  hope that we can come to a medium on this, because

         18  interstate, a lot of the buses are coming in and

         19  taking some of the business from the business

         20  companies that are here in New York.

         21                 I remember an incident. I don't know

         22  how it was rectified. I believe it was in Chinatown.

         23  It was two charter buses and it was a bad

         24  confrontation. I don't know really what was the

         25  outcome of that. Could you tell me the rectified --
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          2                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR LAU: Are you talking

          3  about the shooting?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: Yes.

          5                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR LAU: We made a full

          6  arrest on that.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: Okay. So, did

          8  we come to a medium agreement where the buses can't

          9  stand by and take other people's jobs, I believe? Or

         10  is it just free-for-all there still to this day?

         11                 CAPTAIN CARNEY: Well, we had a

         12  meeting with the bus companies, and we set down a

         13  bunch of requirements. For example, that we

         14  indicated we would not tolerate any sort of

         15  violence. We again stressed all the violations that

         16  we would target, including idling of buses, and

         17  that's something we enforce on a daily basis.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: And I have one

         19  more question.

         20                 Is it certain places they can stand

         21  or wait for their passengers? I thought that it was

         22  just that they would come and pick up their

         23  passengers at certain locations. Have you designated

         24  different locations from buses at different times?

         25  Like a schedule to keep the flow of traffic going?
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          2                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR LAU: Right. An

          3  informal arrangement that we have is that no company

          4  is allowed to have more than one bus per bus stop.

          5  In addition, DOT has established one bus stop and

          6  one layover area in the confines of the 5th

          7  Precinct. You know, again, we strictly enforce those

          8  requirements.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: Thank you. I'm

         10  glad you worked on it. Thank you, Chair.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council

         12  Member Mealy.

         13                 Now, what about the inspections on

         14  the buses that are based out of the midtown

         15  terminals? Is there a certain -- is there the same

         16  level of inspections done on those bus operations as

         17  performed on the buses that come in and out of Lower

         18  Manhattan?

         19                 CAPTAIN CARNEY: With those type

         20  buses, you're referring to tour buses, or?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I'm referring to any

         22  interstate buses that operate perhaps out of

         23  terminals that don't come in and out of the Lower

         24  Manhattan area.

         25                 CAPTAIN CARNEY: Well, in terms of
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          2  tour bus enforcement, the City DOT is in charge of

          3  regulating.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: You're talking about

          5  tour buses, like the double-decker buses that carry

          6  tourists inside the City?

          7                 CAPTAIN CARNEY: Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: No, I'm talking

          9  about interstate buses, buses that carry people in

         10  and out of New York City, obviously some to Upstate,

         11  but many of them to cities outside New York State?

         12                 Is there a particular amount of

         13  attention paid to the interstate buses that run in

         14  and out of, say, the 5th Precinct? Or is the same

         15  level of attention being given equally to all the

         16  interstate buses operating in and out of New York

         17  City?

         18                 CAPTAIN CARNEY: I would say it's on

         19  an equal comparison.  We don't treat them in a

         20  different regard. You know, they're inspected.

         21  They're stopped. They're expected to obey traffic

         22  regulations, just like any other vehicle in the

         23  City.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So, Captain Carney,

         25  you're, I guess it's called the District, STED?
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          2                 CAPTAIN CARNEY: Yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: How many of these

          4  stops do you actually make.

          5                 When you make a stop, are you talking

          6  about you stop a bus that is filled with passengers?

          7  Or is it generally empty of passengers before you

          8  stop them?

          9                 CAPTAIN CARNEY: Well, the STED Unit

         10  has Citywide jurisdiction, so in different boroughs

         11  there are different issues.

         12                 In Midtown Manhattan, the bulk of the

         13  work they do involves tour buses, charter buses that

         14  are illegally laying over. They're in bus stops.

         15  Their passengers are now visiting a site, like the

         16  Empire State Building, and they decide to wait two

         17  hours in a bus stop, and those are the type of

         18  problems that we have in Midtown. And of course,

         19  Inspector Lau spoke about Chinatown, so each

         20  neighborhood in the City is unique to the problems

         21  that they have, and we adjust our strategies

         22  enforcement based on the particular needs of that

         23  area.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.

         25                 And as my colleague mentioned before,
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          2  Council Member Martinez, there are these interstate

          3  bus operations that operate in parts of the City not

          4  only confined to Chinatown and Lower Manhattan.

          5  There are many locations throughout the City.

          6                 I think Council Member Mealy has

          7  parts of her district that are sometimes overrun by

          8  these buses. In Flushing I have a similar problem

          9  where buses are taking up street space and sidewalk

         10  space, in competition with local residents and

         11  businesses. Council Member Martinez has the issues

         12  in the upper parts of Manhattan. There are lots of

         13  neighborhoods.

         14                 So, at this point, the NYPD, through

         15  its STED Unit is simply addressing each community on

         16  a community-by-community basis, but there is no

         17  overall policy concerning operation of interstate

         18  buses? Not the tour buses, but interstate buses.

         19                 CAPTAIN CARNEY: The STED Unit is just

         20  a component within the traffic control division, and

         21  we do have strategies employed for all five

         22  boroughs.

         23                 There is a number of joint operations

         24  that take place on a monthly basis involving patrol

         25  resources, in addition to traffic personnel which
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          2  include highway, traffic enforcement agents, two

          3  trucks and STED Unit, which is just a component.

          4                 So, definitely these issues have been

          5  raised before. We're aware of them. And there are

          6  strategies in place in each borough to deal with

          7  their particular traffic issues.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: All right.

          9                 And we have follow-up questions from

         10  Council Member Mealy.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: Yes. I would

         12  like to know, do these bus companies have their

         13  employees' records? Is there any way, if something

         14  transpired, we could locate, we could call these bus

         15  companies and locate their employees? Have you

         16  coordinated to that full extent?

         17                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR LAU: In the 5th

         18  Precinct, when we brought in the bus companies, we

         19  require them to give us a list of all their drivers.

         20  But this is not, I don't believe we do that

         21  throughout the City.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: And I just have

         23  my last question. What kind of precaution are we

         24  taking, or these bus companies are taking in regards

         25  to now we are 9/11 terrorist mode almost, do we have
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          2  any set precautions in regards to terrorist acts if

          3  something happened on their bus? Who would they

          4  contact first?

          5                 I know they would contact the police,

          6  but is this anything that bus company is doing to

          7  combat terrorism?

          8                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR LAU: I don't know if

          9  we're the right people to answer that question.

         10                 Once they contact the police, we

         11  would start the ball rolling, and we would contact

         12  all the other agencies.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: I just wanted

         14  to bring out, I know Greyhound, they have put up now

         15  plastic glass between their driver and the

         16  passengers on the bus. Are any of these interstate

         17  buses taking that kind of precaution?

         18                 DEPUTY INSPECTOR LAU: I have not seen

         19  that.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: Okay. So, we

         21  definitely have to look into that, just as well,

         22  because we have to say it is a 9/11 era now, and

         23  terrorism is a fact of life almost, so I think we

         24  should look into that to at least address it, Chair.

         25  And thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

          3                 So, Captain Carney, just one final

          4  set of questions for you. With regard to the

          5  inspections that you have conducted on interstate

          6  bus operations, is there any difference between the

          7  number of violations that you see on interstate

          8  buses that don't run out of bus terminals and the

          9  interstate buses that actually run out of bus

         10  terminals?

         11                 CAPTAIN CARNEY: I mean, I think just

         12  looking at the 5th Precinct as an example, I think

         13  we see higher violations on interstate, people that

         14  are coming from interstate.

         15                 A lot of the companies that we deal

         16  with are reputable companies that have been in

         17  business for a number of years in Manhattan, and I

         18  haven't seen the violations like we have in the 5th.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Well, I mean, you

         20  can't just look at the 5th Precinct. The 5th

         21  Precinct doesn't have buses, bus operations that

         22  operate out of bus terminals, they're all curbside.

         23                 So, my question is, is there any

         24  sense about whether the interstate buses that run

         25  along curbsides have more frequent violations than
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          2  say the interstate buses that run out of the Midtown

          3  terminals?

          4                 CAPTAIN CARNEY: I think DOT would be

          5  the experts in terms of the inspections, in terms of

          6  statistics and the violations they encounter, and

          7  they'd probably be better to --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Doesn't NYPD go

          9  along with those inspections with the US DOT? NYPD

         10  clearly goes along with those inspections in Lower

         11  Manhattan. Well, what about the buses in Midtown? Do

         12  you conduct the same level of inspections? Does the

         13  City conduct the same level of inspections on those

         14  buses that operate out of terminals in Midtown?

         15                 CAPTAIN CARNEY: In past we responded

         16  on a case-by-case where problems have come up, where

         17  we directed resources in the 5th Precinct, where

         18  they've had problems we conducted a number of our

         19  joint operations.

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: And,

         21  Mr. Chairman, if I could add something? The Federal

         22  Motor Carrier Safety Administration website has on

         23  its database searchable by the general public the

         24  safety records of all of these interstate motor

         25  carriers, so for an in-depth look at those levels
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          2  there is information available.

          3                 I think what draws the attention of

          4  the Police Department usually is the traffic issues

          5  associated with the buses, and that's why there's

          6  been such sustained enforcement attention in the 5th

          7  Precinct where the problem seems to be more diffuse

          8  in the rest of the City. And, again, in Midtown,

          9  it's a kind of a different picture, because they are

         10  generally coming out of the terminal.

         11                 So, I think what draws the Police

         12  Department's resources is really dealing with the

         13  street conditions presented by the buses, and that's

         14  why we have more of an experience of these

         15  interstate buses accruing in Chinatown and that's

         16  why consequently we seem to have a higher level of

         17  violations there, because there are just so many of

         18  them concentrated there, as again it seems more

         19  diffuse in the rest of the City.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much.

         21                 I think that concludes our questions

         22  for you. I want to thank you, Assistant

         23  Commissioner, and Captain Carney. I certainly want

         24  to commend Inspector Lau for the great management

         25  work that he's done in the 5th Precinct. Thank you.
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          2                 And thank you, Captain Carney, and

          3  Assistant Commissioner, for being somewhat of

          4  regulars at these hearings, for having patience with

          5  us.

          6                 Next I'd like to invite Clyde Hart

          7  from the American Bus Association to join us at the

          8  witness table.

          9                 And I do want to, if there is anybody

         10  else who would like to say something on this issue

         11  for the record, it is necessary to complete one of

         12  these witness appearance cards before we can have

         13  you testify.

         14                 And after you fill it out, give it to

         15  one of our sergeants here.

         16                 Mr. Hart, thank you for joining us

         17  this afternoon. Please proceed when you're ready.

         18                 MR. HART: Thank you, Mr. Chairman,

         19  members of the City Council. My name is Clyde Hart,

         20  and I am Senior Vice President for Government

         21  Affairs of the American Bus Association.

         22                 First, on behalf of the American Bus

         23  Association, and its over 3,500 members, I would

         24  like to thank you, Mr. Chair, and members of the

         25  City Council, for this opportunity to testify on
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          2  what ABA believes is a vital issue touching on the

          3  safety and security and economic well-being of the

          4  City, the State, the people and its institutions.

          5                 The ABA is a primary trade

          6  organization for the over-the-road bus companies.

          7  ABA is made up of over 3,500 member organizations,

          8  including over 800 bus operator members.

          9                 ABA members are engaged in providing

         10  all manner of travel, tour and transportation

         11  services to the public. Specifically our bus

         12  operator members provide inter-city scheduled

         13  service, charter in tour, airport shuttle and

         14  commuter services throughout the nation.

         15                 The private bus industry transports

         16  approximately 660 million passengers a year.

         17                 The industry ABA represents is

         18  largely made up of small businessmen and women. The

         19  average ABA member has fewer than eight motorcoaches

         20  in operation.

         21                 We would like to point out that we

         22  are truly a mom and pop industry.

         23                 ABA and its members experience in the

         24  transportation of passengers compel the conclusion

         25  that there are serious deficiencies in the safety
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          2  enforcement of some carriers that provide interstate

          3  transportation. ABA calls these carriers curbside

          4  operators.

          5                 Let me be clear that ABA is not

          6  concerned with those operators who provide commuter

          7  service to the thousands of people in this tristate

          8  area. Rather, the curbside operators we talk about

          9  may be defined as operators who boast of providing

         10  low-cost service, primarily between cities along the

         11  East Coast.

         12                 The offered service figures on street

         13  corners in Washington, Philadelphia, New York and

         14  Boston. From these street corners and storefronts

         15  along the streets, these carriers operate between

         16  major cities.

         17                 The curbside operators may be

         18  discerned by their lack of maintenance facilities,

         19  administrative officers and sales offices.

         20                 In some cases, such operators do not

         21  even have valid addresses. Of course, they pride

         22  themselves on their low cost, but the other side of

         23  that coin is the lack of maintenance facilities and

         24  therefore the lack of maintenance on their

         25  equipment, their violation of federal, and we
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          2  suspect, State local laws providing transportation

          3  for the disabled and the violation of federal, State

          4  and local clean air and water laws.

          5                 One final point before I begin. Some

          6  will cry that ABA member carriers are interested

          7  only in this issue because of the competition

          8  offered by these curbside operators. ABA has two

          9  responses to that. First, competition offered by

         10  these carriers is not competition between equals,

         11  but rather between carriers that obey the law, and

         12  those that do not.

         13                 No ABA objects to computing on price

         14  or services but the laws and regulations under which

         15  we operate must be the same for all.

         16                 Second, the bus operators represented

         17  by ABA have outstanding safety records. However,

         18  these curbside operators are not safe, and when they

         19  continue to operate, their deficiencies give the

         20  entire private bus industry a bad name, force good

         21  operators into curtailing service, and make a

         22  mockery out of our efforts to provide safe and

         23  efficient transportation.

         24                 The deficiency of these so-called

         25  curbside operators can be roughly broken into three
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          2  sections, safety, what I call ABA violations and

          3  lack of facilities.

          4                 In speaking of the deficiencies, let

          5  me just give you one example. In the September 15th

          6  issue of Washington Post, that paper detailed the

          7  legal problems of curbside operator Fung Wah. In May

          8  of this year, Fung Wah paid $12,950 to settle a case

          9  with regulators who charged violation of federal

         10  safety regulations. In April of this year, these

         11  same regulators warned the same carrier against

         12  scheduling buses in a way that forced their drivers

         13  to speed.

         14                 And just last month, in September,

         15  regulators were forced to deal with the Fung Wah bus

         16  that returned on its way to New York from Boston.

         17                 If the problems of Fung Wah were the

         18  problems of this one carrier, we would all be less

         19  alarmed. But that's not the case.

         20                 Less than a year ago, a sweep of 400

         21  mostly low-cost carrier buses by a federal, state

         22  and local task force in Washington, D.C. led the

         23  Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration, FMCSA,

         24  and the primary regulator of interstate buses to put

         25  56 of those buses and 13 of those drivers out of
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          2  service.

          3                 By my calculation, that's 14 percent

          4  of the 400 buses that were inspected. Let me suggest

          5  that if the Federal Aviation Administration had

          6  found 14 percent of an airline fleet out of service,

          7  that air carrier would not be allowed to fly.

          8                 When US Senator Charles Schumer

          9  speaks of a "safety gap on intercity buses," he is

         10  referring to these low-cost interstate carriers and

         11  with good reason.

         12                 Senator Schumer's office collected

         13  safety data on Fung Wah and other curbside operators

         14  from the FMCSA website. The data on driver safety

         15  shows that Greyhound had a driver safety score of 22

         16  out of 100, and you have to remember that under

         17  FMCSA ranking, the lower number the better.

         18                 So, if you have a number of zero,

         19  you're the best carrier there is. If you have a

         20  number of 100 on a safety ranking, I suggest you

         21  find another carrier.

         22                 That said, Fung Wah's rating, as I

         23  said, Greyhound's rating was 22. Fung Wah's rating

         24  was 73. Other curbside operators included Dragon

         25  Coach, which had a rating of 74, and New Century
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          2  Coach which had a rating of 97. In the area of

          3  safety management, Greyhound's rating was zero. Fung

          4  Wah's rating was 71. Dragon Coach's rating was 99.

          5  And New Century's rating was 92.

          6                 The responsibility for enforcement of

          7  federal motor carrier and safety regulations is

          8  large with the FMCSA. And FMCSA attempts to meet its

          9  responsibility by rating all motor carriers as

         10  either satisfactory, conditional, or unsatisfactory.

         11                 However, a recent search of the FMCSA

         12  database revealed that of the 150 carriers domiciled

         13  in New York State, as opposed to carriers domiciled

         14  everywhere else, over 100 of those carriers are

         15  listed as not rated by FMCSA.

         16                 So, with respect to Assistant Deputy

         17  Police Commissioner's assertion that FMCSA has all

         18  the safety data, it most assuredly does not. Because

         19  FMCSA rates carriers after they've been inspected.

         20  If there is no inspection, there is no rating.

         21                 But you can operate until you are

         22  rated. That's the way FMCSA does it. They attempt to

         23  get a rating for all new carriers. Their latest plan

         24  is to get a rating for every carrier within 18

         25  months. So far they haven't made it.
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          2                 So there are an awful lot of carriers

          3  out there that are not rated. So, clearly, the

          4  public has really no idea of how good a carrier is

          5  because there is no rating for that carrier.

          6                 The second issue with regard to these

          7  curbside operators has to do with the availability

          8  of, it's what we call accessible equipment.

          9                 Under the federal law, the Americans

         10  With Disabilities Act and the regulations

         11  implementing that law requires that since October of

         12  2000, every over-the-road bus purchased by the

         13  scheduled service operators, must be wheelchair lift

         14  equipped.

         15                 In addition, starting this month,

         16  October of '06, the regulations are required that 50

         17  percent of everybody's bus fleet of all scheduled

         18  service carriers, and that includes the curbside

         19  operators, be equipped with wheelchair lifts.

         20                 Wheelchair lifts, frankly, just

         21  allowed disabled passengers to board and disembark

         22  motorcoaches safely. The problem is that you can

         23  look at curbside operators and see that they do not

         24  have wheelchair lift equipped buses. Just look at

         25  it, you can see, because in the center of the
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          2  motorcoach is a cut out and that's where the

          3  wheelchair lift is supposed to go.

          4                 So, if you see a bus without the

          5  lines that denote a cut out, it does not have a

          6  wheelchair lift. That is against federal regulation.

          7                 At a congressional hearing on

          8  curbside operators in March of this year, that ABA

          9  was part of, a representative from one of the

         10  curbside operators, when asked why he didn't have

         11  wheelchair lifts, complained that wheelchair lifts

         12  are expensive. We agree. It costs $40,000 to put a

         13  wheelchair lift on a bus. That doesn't matter. It's

         14  the same if the bus is new or if the bus is being

         15  reconditioned.

         16                 It also doesn't take into account how

         17  much it cost to train the personnel to operate the

         18  lift or to repair the lift once they go bad which

         19  they do have a tendency to do.

         20                 But that's not the point. The point

         21  is that having these buses is now the law. The

         22  country has long since passed the point where

         23  businesses can pick and choose who they want to

         24  serve and who they don't want to serve.

         25                 Discrimination against people with
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          2  mobility impairments is not the only accessibility

          3  problem for the curbside operators. Last year the

          4  Massachusetts Attorney General filed a complaint

          5  against Fung Wah for denying boarding to a blind

          6  couple. And what must be the clearest expression of

          7  catch-22, they denied, the complaint indicated that

          8  Fung Wah denied boarding to the husband because he

          9  had a service dog. They denied boarding to his wife

         10  because she did not have a service dog.

         11                 Compliance with ADA on the federal

         12  level is the responsibility of FMCSA, and the United

         13  States Department of Justice. However, we are

         14  certain that providing access to people with

         15  disabilities should not be just a federal

         16  responsibility.

         17                 We suggest that the City's local

         18  ordinances on the provision of public accommodation

         19  for people with disabilities can be used to ensure

         20  transportation service for the disabled.

         21                 Last is a lack of facilities. As I

         22  said before, a lot of these curbside operators do

         23  not have valid addresses. They also don't have

         24  maintenance facilities, which brings to mind the

         25  question of where they're getting their maintenance

                                                            67

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  done, or what kind of maintenance is being done.

          3                 Remember, I also said that FMCSA

          4  depends on inspections. Well, those inspections are

          5  typically done at the facility of the carrier. So,

          6  if you go to Greyhound, any Greyhound garage or

          7  operation, any Peter Pan garage or operation, you

          8  will probably find FMCSA inspectors there sooner or

          9  later, because that's where they know we'll be. The

         10  problem is the curbside operators don't have

         11  maintenance facilities, therefore there is nowhere

         12  for them to be inspected.

         13                 Currently they're not inspected,

         14  which means they have no rating. But, remember, they

         15  still get to operate, even though they don't have a

         16  rating of any kind at all.

         17                 The other thing with the lack of

         18  facilities is not only just maintenance, but as

         19  Councilwoman Mealy stated, there is a security

         20  aspect of it, and the aspect is simply this: If

         21  you're talking about a terminal, and just pick Port

         22  Authority Bus Terminal for one example, the police

         23  and the security forces know where those carriers

         24  are, they know whose buses are there, and they can

         25  inspect them. They can walk through. They can look
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          2  to see who may be acting strangely, who may be a

          3  possible threat to himself or others. That happens

          4  all the time. Greyhound has stepped up and started

          5  screening passengers and baggage on its equipment.

          6  Other of my members are doing the same.

          7                 With the curbside operators have no

          8  terminals and no facility, it's impossible to

          9  screen. It's impossible to say that there isn't

         10  somebody who isn't a danger to himself or others on

         11  that bus, or who is putting something on that bus

         12  that shouldn't be on it.

         13                 Another issue that attends the

         14  problem of lack of facilities is the clean air and

         15  clean water laws that are implicated.

         16                 Motorcoaches have wastewater

         17  facilities tanks that must be dumped. The question

         18  is, if you don't have a maintenance facility, where

         19  are you dumping your tanks? It is a violation of

         20  federal law for any bus operator to dump his tanks

         21  in a manner inconsistent with the National Clean Air

         22  and Clean Water Standards.

         23                 We have found some curbside operators

         24  who have been dumping their tanks in City streets.

         25  Most recently in Roanoke, Virginia, a violation of
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          2  federal law. Also a violation of any locality that

          3  has a worry about clean air or clean water.

          4                 There is a cure for the problems. I

          5  was interested in Councilman Gerson's suggestion

          6  about some sort of terminal for these carriers. The

          7  ABA thinks that would be a perfect solution. You

          8  would know where to find them. People would know

          9  where they could pick up the buses and they could

         10  pick up the buses, and they could be inspected on a

         11  regular basis. That's a suggestion that we get

         12  behind. And, frankly, it's been tried and it's

         13  worked. It's been tried in Boston last year where

         14  they also had a problem with curbside operators and

         15  a coalition of the City officials, the economic

         16  development people and local businesses who were

         17  losing money because the curbside operators were

         18  taking space in front of the restaurant, forced the

         19  curbside operators into South Street Station in

         20  Boston where they reside to this day.

         21                 That has worked to clean up a lot of

         22  the problems with the curbside operators, at least

         23  so far as Boston, and the ABA recommends that highly

         24  to anybody that has that kind of a issue with the

         25  curbside operator.
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          2                 In conclusion, let me just say thank

          3  you once again, Mr. Chairman, for holding this

          4  hearing. ABA would be very interested in working

          5  with anybody in the City Council on the parking

          6  plan, on any kind of facilities plan. We have some

          7  expertise in this issue. New York City is an

          8  incredible market for my members, the Charter and

          9  tour and the scheduled service, and we all think

         10  it's in our best interest to do everything we can to

         11  make sure it's safe, that transportation into and

         12  out of New York is safe and secure.

         13                 With that, thank you very much. And

         14  if you have any questions, I'll be happy to answer

         15  them.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much,

         17  Mr. Hart. Thank you for coming up to this hearing

         18  from Washington. We appreciate your time and effort,

         19  and we certainly understand some of the perspectives

         20  on the part of the members of the American Bus

         21  Association.

         22                 Now, you mentioned several times in

         23  your testimony that these curbside bus operators are

         24  not safe. But, yet, there are statements from

         25  federal agencies that state that the safety record
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          2  of these buses are no different from the bus

          3  operators that operate out of bus terminals.

          4                 How do you reconcile that?

          5                 MR. HART: Very easily. They're wrong;

          6  we're right.

          7                 And it's this way: First of all, as I

          8  said, a lot of the curbside operators don't have a

          9  rating, so they're not counted. So, it's not that,

         10  you know, you throw out the first 100 because they

         11  don't have a rating, then you're rating 50 to 50. It

         12  may be the same, but their first 100 aren't in

         13  there. That's number one.

         14                 Number two, you can go on the FMCSA

         15  website yourself, and we have as recently as

         16  yesterday, and get some information about the safety

         17  ratings of those, of all interstate carriers, and,

         18  frankly, you will find that there is a marked

         19  difference between -- I tried to do in my testimony,

         20  you will find a marked difference between the

         21  Greyhounds and the Peter Pans, and the New Dragon

         22  and New Century curbside operators.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Well, we saw the

         24  numbers that you presented in your testimony. Still

         25  both State regulators in Massachusetts, even with
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          2  the accidents that occurred in Massachusetts, the

          3  State regulators have generally said that curbside

          4  bus companies have been responsive, and make repairs

          5  quickly and that I think the head of the

          6  Massachusetts agency responsible for these buses

          7  actually said that the curbside buses' reputation

          8  for being unsafe was unfair.

          9                 They're wrong you're saying?

         10                 MR. HART: Well, that's the first of

         11  heard of that from anybody in Massachusetts. I would

         12  have to respectfully disagree, but show me the data

         13  on it. The data we have on it shows the opposite.

         14                 Now, I will say, with respect to

         15  Boston, that once the curbside operators got into

         16  South Street Station, they were inspected, they did,

         17  or a lot of them did bring their operations up to

         18  code or up to federal standards and things are

         19  somewhat easier, from what I'm told, in Boston.

         20                 That was a direct result of getting

         21  them into a facility where they could be inspected

         22  on a regular basis and weeding out, obviously, the

         23  worst of the bunch.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Can a curbside bus

         25  company become a member of the ABA?
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          2                 MR. HART: Sure. Absolutely, as long

          3  as they adhere to the same standards that all of my

          4  other members do.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: What generally --

          6  let me rephrase.

          7                 What deficiencies would you say

          8  curbside bus operators have that preclude them from

          9  becoming members of the ABA?

         10                 MR. HART: The lack of maintenance

         11  facilities, for one.

         12                 I'm not sure, and this goes to what

         13  the inspector was saying at the last panel, all

         14  drivers have to have CDLs, the commercial drivers

         15  license. And, frankly, the only license that anybody

         16  needs to worry about, as far as a commercial

         17  vehicle, at least bus, is if they have a CDL with P,

         18  a passenger endorsement. So, we want to see that. We

         19  want to see what their training is like, and we want

         20  to basically see what their equipment is like. It's

         21  really, it's really easy to become a member of the

         22  ADA, and the dues is pretty low. So, it's no kind of

         23  weeding out. But we do have a code of conduct which

         24  we recommend and basically we forced a couple of

         25  people out, who wouldn't abide by the code of
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          2  conduct with regard to service and maintenance.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: All right. So,

          4  you're saying that it's not hard at all?

          5                 MR. HART: No.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: They just have to

          7  have a maintenance facility.

          8                 MR. HART: Well, maintenance facility,

          9  and basically get the buses inspected, and get an

         10  inspection. And, again, that's not hard to do. You

         11  can call up FMCSA and say would you come inspect my

         12  buses and they will be there.  With or without a

         13  state or a local connection, they will be there.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And how many members

         15  of the American Bus Association run buses in and out

         16  of New York City?

         17                 MR. HART: Roughly?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Rough number.

         19                 MR. HART: Roughly half.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Half of all the

         21  members of the ADA run --

         22                 MR. HART: Run some sort of buses out

         23  of New York City.

         24                 Now, they could be, there could be

         25  charter and tour, or it could be scheduled service.
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          2  Or it could be commuters.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: All right. Well,

          4  let's look at the inter-city buses.

          5                 MR. HART: All right.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Because I think

          7  that's the relevant question. We're not really

          8  looking at the tour buses as much as we are looking

          9  at the regularly scheduled inter-city buses.

         10                 So, how many members do you have in

         11  New York City that run inter-city buses into and out

         12  of New York City? Rough number, like five.

         13                 MR. HART: Rough number like 20?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Twenty?

         15                 MR. HART: Yes, rough number. I'm just

         16  -- you know, they're the obvious ones, Peter Pan,

         17  Greyhound, Academy, Trailways. There are several

         18  different Trailways operations that run in and out

         19  of New York City. And all our members of ABA.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: In addition to those

         21  four pretty well-known companies there are 16 other

         22  bus companies that are members of the ABA that run

         23  inter-city buses?

         24                 MR. HART: Roughly.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay. And do you
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          2  remember any of the names of those companies off the

          3  top of your head?

          4                 MR. HART: Sure. Academy, Trailways,

          5  New York Trailways, there's Capital Trailways out of

          6  Pennsylvania.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: We accounted for

          8  Greyhound, Peter Pan, Trailways, and --

          9                 MR. HART: Trailways --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: -- Academy.

         11                 MR. HART: Trailways isn't one

         12  carrier. Trailways is basically franchised. It is

         13  several different carriers.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.

         15                 MR. HART: So, Carolina Trailways is

         16  different than Pennsylvania Trailways.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I understand. So,

         18  you count them as separate members.

         19                 MR. HART: Right.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: But how many members

         21  do you have -- how many members of the ABA do you

         22  have running inter-city buses running into and out

         23  of New York City who have no connection with

         24  Greyhound, Trailways, Peter Pan, or Academy?

         25                 Because even though from your
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          2  perspective, Trailways could be half a dozen

          3  different companies. From the public's perspective,

          4  it's the same thing.

          5                 MR. HART: Well, that's not true.

          6                 It's a different Board of Directors.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I know but from the

          8  --

          9                 MR. HART: It's different ownership.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Well, let me put it

         11  to you this way. Two separate Trailways companies

         12  run the same route?

         13                 MR. HART: Sure.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Between, say between

         15  New York City and Washington?

         16                 MR. HART: Sure.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay. I think as a

         18  practical matter, from the public's perspective,

         19  Trailways is Trailways, whether it be --

         20                 MR. HART: All right, Trailways is

         21  Trailways.  If you take out the five or six

         22  Trailways, I'm still looking at ten, 12 members who

         23  run inter-city services.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: What would be some

         25  of those companies?
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          2                 MR. HART: Greyhound, Peter Pan,

          3  Academy, Turner Coaches, which is basically based in

          4  Indiana. There are a couple other, it's a Delaware

          5  corporation, I'm just not familiar.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay. But I would

          7  say the vast bulk of the inter-City service is

          8  provided by those top four names. Let's not call

          9  them companies, they're names.

         10                 MR. HART: Sure. But the vast bulk of

         11  most transportation services and scheduled service

         12  everywhere is provided by those top four names.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.

         14                 Just I'd like to note that we've been

         15  joined by Council Member Oliver Koppell, from the

         16  Bronx.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Mr. Chairman,

         18  I apologize. This is an important and interesting

         19  subject, but my Committee that I chair has a hearing

         20  at exactly the same time. I'm really not going to be

         21  able to stay, but I've taken some of the papers here

         22  and appreciate it was good and important for the

         23  Transportation Committee.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. I
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          2  understand that you do have a concurrent hearing

          3  taking place that you actually have to Chair, so

          4  thank you for joining us for this brief period.

          5                 So, Mr. Hart, do you encourage these

          6  curbside bus companies to join the ABA?

          7                 MR. HART: All the time.

          8                 I mean, we try -- I've gone by their

          9  offices in DC, at least one of them, and ask them,

         10  you know, have you thought about becoming a member

         11  of ABA? I frankly don't know who I was talking to,

         12  whether it was a person of any kind of authority,

         13  but I left my card.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So, the added

         15  competition is just not an issue for the ABA?

         16                 MR. HART: No. Because if you go on

         17  the website of both Greyhound and Peter Pan, to talk

         18  about the two bigger, you'll find that the fares are

         19  pretty referably (phonetic) the same. So, it's not a

         20  competition per se. It's not that anybody is afraid

         21  of competition, because if a curbside operator's

         22  fare is $30, Greyhound's will be within one or two

         23  dollars of that $30 fare.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: All right.

         25                 And then, lastly, your conclusion
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          2  generally states that there should be strict

          3  enforcement.

          4                 MR. HART: Yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Are there any

          6  changes in regulations or laws that the ABA would

          7  suggest for us to consider and possibly enact here

          8  in New York City?

          9                 MR. HART: Well, I'd like to see more

         10  of the joint work between the Police Department and

         11  the State and federal authorities that the Deputy

         12  Inspector was talking about. That doesn't require a

         13  lot of legislation, but I think it's a great thing.

         14  And there's money. There's federal money that's

         15  available to the states and localities under what's

         16  called MCSIP, which is Motor Carrier Safety

         17  Improvement Program, that allows the states and the

         18  localities to get federal money to do the bus

         19  inspections on behalf of the FMCSA.

         20                 The FMCSA might have 400 inspectors

         21  nationwide, so they need all the help they can get

         22  with regard from state and local. So, I'd like to

         23  see more of that.

         24                 Obviously, I think the terminal is a

         25  great idea. I think generally speaking terminals are

                                                            81

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  a great idea for buses or any kind of

          3  transportation, to allow people easier access and

          4  egress in any mode of transportation.

          5                 I think that's great.

          6                 I would suspect that if you ask your

          7  patrol officers, each one of them could come up with

          8  a story about an operator whose equipment was just

          9  on the face of it, bald tires, lights out, that sort

         10  of thing. I'd like to see more summons being issued

         11  for those kinds of problems, because, frankly,

         12  that's where the maintenance starts to break down,

         13  it's always the little things that go first. And

         14  then it just goes and rackets up.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So, I assume your

         16  members would never, ever be subject to these kinds

         17  of summonses?

         18                 MR. HART: No, they're subject to

         19  them. That's fine. We don't have a problem with

         20  that. I mean, if you're wrong, you're wrong. That's

         21  not the issue.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: All right.

         23                 So, in conclusion and in summary, the

         24  American Bus Association simply recommends and

         25  requests more enforcement of these inter-city and
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          2  inter-state buses?

          3                 MR. HART: Sure. And also that we'd

          4  like somebody at DOT, Department of Transportation,

          5  or NYPD to call us and talk about some of these

          6  other issues.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: All right.

          8                 MR. HART: So we can be a part of, our

          9  members can be a part of whatever ongoing

         10  discussions are being had.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: All right.

         12                 Well, thank you very much, Mr. Hart,

         13  for your insight and your time and effort.

         14                 MR. HART: Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

         16                 I know that we have other

         17  participants in the industry but there is no

         18  indication that they would like to testify today,

         19  for the record? There being no other witnesses, this

         20  hearing of the Transportation Committee of the City

         21  Council is adjourned.

         22                 (Hearing concluded at 3:50 p.m.)
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